Internal FAQs
Project steps/selection of ESCO/tendering process
1. How long does setting up a project typically take? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

That obviously depends on the circumstances and the size of the project. Typical
preparation times can be between 1-2 and up to 3 years.

2. What data is needed from the municipality to start EPC negotiations/Does the municipality
need an audit ("passport") already done before starting EPC negotiation? (question from the
KO meeting and from ECCB)
•

Typically, some basic data will be collected by the municipality (the EPC-quick check
provides some information which data are typically needed).

•

As a next step, often a first analysis ("rough analysis") is carried out, either by an ESCO,
an external consultant or the municipality staff. The required data for the first/rough
analysis is similar to the data which were collected for the project calculations done in the
context of the Internal Working Session. Additional information (e.g. pole height, distance
between luminaires, etc.) will increase the accuracy of the first/rough analysis.

3. Are there other quality criteria to evaluate/monitor the project other than money/savings?
(question from the Kick-Off meeting)
What are the key criteria (financial and nonfinancial) in tender procedures for selection of
ESCOs for streetlight EPC? Is there a key criteria element who will secure selection of quality
bidder (tenderer)? (question from REGEA)
•

In addition to economic criteria, quality criteria for the lamps are important (light colour,
lighting level through time, etc.)

•

Quality of the guarantee (how the savings are guaranteed)

4. How are quality, energy savings targets, maintenance savings guaranteed or references taken
into account in tender selection process? (question from REGEA)
•

Guaranteed quality, energy saving targets and maintenance saving are guaranteed by
contractual agreement that defines all roles, responsibilities and rights of contractual
parties in detail.

•

Make sure that the ESCO guarantees certain energy savings and that there is a
guarantee that products (lamps) will be available for the next eg. 20 years.
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•

In Upper Austria, for example, the weights given to the various aspects in the selection
process are around: 50% for price of works and services, 30% for guaranteed energy
savings and 20% for guaranteed maintenance cost savings.

5. Is maintenance of public lighting a part of same tendering procedure for EPC services? Is this
considered as public-private partnership? (question from REGEA)
•

Typically maintenance should be included in the contract as it is a very important part for
total savings (LEDs have longer duration than other lamps, therefore maintenance costs
for exchange of lamps is much lower).

•

There are a number of options how to include maintenance: it can either be taken over
(partly or totally) by the ESCO, or it can be taken over (partly or totally) by the client
(municipality)

•

The ESCO can operate in a similar manner as a "prime contractor" who also involves
local professionals (e.g. local electrician).

6. In the procurement process, excluding the investment, should we calculate operation and
maintenance costs? Is it the armature (equipment) lifespan that we are calculating our costs
on? (question from Kalmar)
•

Yes, maintenance costs should be included! Very often, it is the high maintenance cost
savings brought on by LEDs that permit to make EPC streetlight project economically
feasible.

•

The maintenance costs savings should be calculated for the duration of the EPC contract,
during which the installation is usually covered by a full guarantee.

7. In relation to supply of electricity, what is your point of view about including it or not in tender
process? (question from Santander)
•

Including it would limit/constrain the project because it would limit the ESCOs that could
present an offer to those that are also electricity suppliers.

•

In Upper Austria, electricity supply is usually dealt with separately, though the legal
situation might be different in other countries.

•

If it is included in the contract, the municipality would not be allowed to change electricity
suppliers for the whole duration of the contract (no possibility to change to a cheaper
supplier).

8. How can we simplify the understanding of EPC procedures? (question from CKEA)
•

In order to be able to simplify, one first needs to understand all details of EPC.

•

By using the tools, developed in the frame of the project (simple publications, site-visits)
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9. What should we do if we have no ESCOs? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

It is the role of the facilitation service (Streetlight-EPC regional project partners) to look for
and find out who could be a potential ESCO in the region. (eg, these could be SMEs,
large regional companies, energy suppliers, international companies, etc.)

Guaranteed savings/monitoring
10. Who sets the savings level? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
How are the savings determined; who is controlling the consumption and the installed
technology, regulations (e.g. at what times the street lighting is operating which leads to
savings)? (question from Maribor)
•

The savings level (order of magnitude) is determined by the first/rough analysis.

•

For street lighting projects, savings are determined mostly based on the installed load
reduction. This is measured before and after refurbishment (preferable in the presence of
a representative of both the ESCO and the municipality).

11. What happens if the savings are not achieved/delivered? (question from KO)
•

The ESCO needs to pay compensation to the municipality.

12. How does a city/municipality guarantee for payments (based on energy/costs savings) to
ESCO? (question from REGEA)
•

Where a municipality’s credit rating is low, this can be done with bank guarantees.

•

If a bank guarantee cannot be obtained, in some countries, the regional level might
provide a guarantee, otherwise the municipality is not a good candidate for EPC (KO
criteria)

13. Does ESCO guarantee for whole public lighting systems or just luminaires if only luminaires
where a part of reconstruction? (question from REGEA)
•

The ESCO only guarantees for their own installations (those parts that they have
installed). The rest remains the responsibility of the municipality.

14. For a good quality LED products (lamps/luminaire), for how long does the guarantee last
(hours)? If this guarantee is less than the ESCO contract period, how is the remaining period
guaranteed? (question from Santander)
•

Standard products have a warranty of 3-5 years (for LED and electronic components),
some have a warrantee of 10 years (LED only).

•

For some products, an extension of warranty can be purchased. This is to be done by the
ESCO. Costs must be considered in the projects economic calculation.
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•

Warranty extensions to 10 years are usually not very expensive. Extensions above 10
years are more expensive (but might be obtained from some manufacturers).

•

Since technical failure rate is quite low with LEDs, some ESCOs decide to take on the risk
for the missing years of warranty.

•

The risk is not borne by the municipality. If the ESCO also takes over responsibility for
maintenance, then the full warranty can be negotiated more easily.

15. When it comes to reconstruction of public lighting in accordance with EN 13201, is the EPC
calculation method for energy savings based on current consumption indicators or referent
ones (simulated ones where low energy efficient non existing luminaries are added to existing
ones to simulate compliance with norm before reconstruction)? (question from REGEA)
•

Usually current costs (before refurbishment) are used as baseline.

16. Measurement and Verification – is IPMVP (International Performance Measurement and
Verification Protocol) obligatory in your country and if yes, which method gives best results for
public lighting projects? (question from REGEA)?
How is IPMVP carried out on street lighting installations? Who takes the responsibility for
carrying out IPMVP? (question from CKEA)
•

It is important that the measurement and verification method used is approved by both
parties (the municipality and the ESCO). Any method that provides real information that
can be easily verified by both parties is sufficient in Austria.

•

In most countries, IPMVP is not mandatory, but it helps to verify that you are working with
a good/trust-worthy ESCO. (IPMVP does not provide the exact way to measure and verify,
but a guide on how to do it)

•

IMPVP can be conducted by an external body or by the ESCO, but the output has to be
very clear and must be understood by the customer.

•

REGEA: it is mandatory in Croatia

•

CKEA: in Ireland, it is mandatory if public money is used

17. In order to guarantee sustainability and durability not only in relation with the quality of service
but also related with products/equipment, what do you think about including, as requirements
for ESS, different kinds of certifications such as: (question from Santander)
1. certification according to national regulation: each country may have different
regulations that must be fulfilled by the ESS. So, ESS shall be accredited,
2. certification according to European Commission,
3. certification provided by manufacturers, ensuring the proper operation of their
products during all the project time,
4. certification of validation test carried out by providers in order to ensure and also
prove the performance of their products.
•

Ask for everything!
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•

Ask for as much information as you can, to make sure that the product you are purchasing
answers the required specifications (eg: CE certification of products, proof of lighting level
after X years).

•

For a check list of important criteria, for example see ppt of Gil.

Economic/Financial
18. Will the project cost me more (because of the cost of the ESCO)? (question from the Kick-Off
meeting)
•

Yes, the ESCO is offering a service and, therefore, needs to make a certain profit.

•

The added costs will probably be similar to those of hiring the services of a good planner
for the project (planning office).

•

You can check the total project costs and compare with the costs, if you would finance
and implement the project yourselves.

•

However, in most cases in the long run, the EPC project will help the municipality save
money (the ESCO often gets better prices when buying lamps/luminaires than the
municipality would get and as a specialised company, it can do number of steps in the
process in a more effective manner).

19. How much profit should the ESCO make? Is there a cap on how much money the ESCO can
make? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
Generally, how big is the overhead of the ESCO (in percentage? What are the generally
acceptable SPP ("simple pay back periods") for ESCO companies in your country? (question
from REGEA)
•

There is no cap on how much an ESCO can make.

•

Profit margins for ESCOs are similar to those of other service companies.

•

It must be enough to cover costs, taxes and the risk the ESCO takes. The ESCO should
be able to make good money (in order to attract good companies wanting to become
ESCOs), but not an unreasonable amount.

20. What happens if the savings are higher than estimated in EPC contract? (question from ECCB)
•

This needs to be defined in the contract.

•

In Upper Austria, in the past, the revenue from the extra savings used to go to the ESCO.
With time (and probably due to increasing competition between ESCOs) this changed.
Today, the revenue from extra savings most often goes to the municipality. In any case,
the municipality ends up winning from any extra savings that are achieved, since they will
end up with a more efficient lighting system after the end of the contract.
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21. Are there ways to share the savings between the municipality and the ESCO? (question from
the Kick-Off meeting)
•

Yes, this is also possible and often done in Upper Austria (eg. half of the additional
savings go to the ESCO and half of it go to the municipality).

22. What if the cost of electricity goes way up? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

In Upper Austria, the contract does not usually include an indexed increase in electricity
price over the course of the contract. The guaranteed energy cost savings are calculated
according to the cost of electricity at the time of writing up the contract.

•

The contract guarantees energy savings. Therefore, any increase in electricity cost is the
responsibility of the municipality and is paid to the utility through the electricity bills.

23. Can the ESCO base his creditworthiness on guarantees from city/municipality as kind of
collateral for banks or other financial institutions? (question from REGEA)
•

In Upper Austria, this is sometimes the case, but the guarantee on energy savings always
need to be maintained.

•

Escan: It is important to ask the banks what they would need to provide a credit. Maybe
the EIB would ask for different guarantees than a national bank…

24. Which costs are typically considered in EPC projects (e.g. documentation, new pillars and
cables, etc.)? (question from Maribor)
How is the cost of the infrastructure (poles, cabling, ducting) taken into account in an
EPC/ESCO finance model? (question from CKEA)
Should all the costs be included into the project? For example some projects need to change
the entire installation compared to other projects when you only need to change the luminaire?
Will this bring extra costs for the municipalities? Or can we bring this into payback cost in the
procurement process? (question from Kalmar)
Who pays for the new infrastructure? Does it come out of the energy savings? (question from
CKEA)
•

When the ESCO calculates the total investment cost, it usually includes all costs that arise
for the implementation of the project: material, installation, staff costs, etc. It also
considers the risk that it takes and its profit.

•

For the calculation of cost savings for the municipality, electricity and maintenance costs
are considered. Maintenance costs can include: material (lamps, ballast and other
electronics that need to be changed), staff costs, lifting equipment, cleaning, painting
poles, regular checks, updating the municipalities own inventory, etc.

•

When a municipality wants to change other installation than the luminaires (switch boards,
cabling, pillars, etc.), these costs can be considered in the project costs, but can most
often not be financed through the energy savings. In these cases, the municipality has the
extra cost of financing these parts of the installations.
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25. Some projects with great historic cultural value need luminaire and lamp posts with a typical
feature. In most cases this means a larger investment. What is your advice in this matter?
(question from Kalmar)
How can historical issues in terms of wooden electricity poles with side entry mounted
luminaires be overcome? (question from CKEA)
With legacy issues in terms of design of street lighting, how is the design of new energy
efficient public lighting scheme incorporated into the cost of the lighting? (question from CKEA)
•

In Upper Austria, there are projects that include luminaires with historical cultural value.
These need to be included in the pool of purchased luminaires and, therefore, influence
the project costs.

•

Today, there is the possibility of using internal retrofitting kits where only the internal
components of the luminaires are changed (the CE certification mark than has to be
obtained). This permits to maintain the external look. This possibility need to be checked
and implemented by the ESCO.

26. Which payment model was used in other EU countries for the EPC? (question from Maribor)
•

There are different bookkeeping systems. The costs for the ESCO can be put under
"basing" or "maintenance costs".

•

Escan: There are several payments model options. They could be summarised as:
• Fixed amount: this amount is less than the total amount paid by the client before the
project.
• A fixed amount for equipment amortisation + variable amount for operation and
others
• All variable amounts based on energy consumption or other parameters
• A mix of fixed and several variable amounts, depending on the services

27. To whom is the energy bill sent and who pays the bill, where the part of the private partner
should be included for repayment of the investment? (question from Maribor)
•

The municipality continues to their electricity bill from the electricity supplier (with a
reduced amount due to the investment that the ESCO made) and a second bill from the
ESCO. Both together should not be higher than what the municipality was initially paying
before the EPC project (unless the municipality is financing a part of the project by their
own means)

28. Can the lifespan of the equipment be longer than that of the contract? (question from the KickOff meeting)
•

Yes!
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Technical/maintenance
29. What happens if technology changes? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

Nothing, because you have a contract guaranteeing the lighting level and savings (which
will still be achieved, regardless of the development of technology).

•

The question arises when the EPC contract comes to its end.

•

Anyway, lighting companies do not foresee a huge increase in efficiency in the coming
years. Technological development will more likely be on the control side.

30. Are there typical LED luminaires for a certain situation that are available as typical cases? For
example, for a street inside a city, with average traffic, width 12m, which is the typical best
solution or solutions? (question from Santander)
•

Yes, absolutely, there are products that are often used by ESCOs, though it depends are
the specifications that the client wants.

•

There are luminaires that offer a good price/service ratio. These are usually used by
ESCOs.

31. We have detected that lighting product suppliers can sell several LED luminaries with the same
power (W) but different unitary cost. How to select the optimum? (question from Santander)
•

Yes, there are other important factors (see Philips/Gil’s ppt below) - these need to be
considered.
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32. Is it only the ESCO who must ensure maintenance of the street light system during the period
of EPC contract? (question from ECCB)
•

No, there are various possibilities. Which party is responsible for the maintenance (ESCO
or municipality) needs to be set in the contract (see Question 5 and 6)

•

Most partners will probably find that it makes more economic sense that the ESCO looks
after the maintenance, since they are guaranteeing the maintenance cost savings and
guarantee of the installation.

33. Is there financially acceptable technical solution (device or gadget) for measuring electricity
consumption of every luminaire? If yes what is the average cost per luminaire? (question from
REGEA) Is telemetry of new installed public lighting systems mandatory in your country? If yes
what is the average cost per luminaire for telemetry systems? (question from REGEA)
What parameters are needed to ensure virtual metering is accepted across Europe? (question
from CKEA)
•

Yes, there are technical solutions for measuring electricity of every luminaire. This can be
financially acceptable if you extend the contract a bit. The cost/price is to be determined.

•

In LED systems, the control and electronic systems can be incorporated into each light
point. The telemeasurement or telemanagement systems can be from different suppliers,
as PHILIPS, Schneider, ORBIS, etc. The cost depends on the specific solution.

•

Escan: They are not mandatory in Spain, but sometimes used.

•

The ESCO needs to measure the electricity consumption, but the municipality needs to
verify that the bill from the utility matches the ESCOs guaranteed savings -> match the
measuring of the utility with the measuring of the ESCO.

34. Is it true that the LED armature need to be placed closer together than the conventional
lamps in order to provide satisfying standard? If this is the case, we will have to invest in the
installation facilitation instead of just the armature. (question from Kalmar)
•

Absolutely not, if the right luminaire is used.

35. Until now, a company is hired in order to remove old materials (luminaires, lamps, etc.).
However, there is no tracking of what it is done with this material and, additionally, no profit is
received by the city council. What is your opinion about including a recycling plan? (question
from Santander)
•

It can be made part of the contract. There are many different possibilities for what can be
done with the material, but always take into account requirements of proper disposal.
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Legal/contractual issues
36. What is the best contract duration? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

Usually 2-3 years longer than the calculated financial payback time. This permits the
ESCO to payback their investment and make a profit.

37. What happens after the contract ends? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

There are many variation of what can happen (in most cases a change of ownership from
the ESCO to the municipality). This needs to be included in the contract.

38. Who should write up the contract? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

The first draft of the contract is typically written up by the ESCO, since they have done the
first/rough and detailed analysis and have calculated the energy savings potential.

39. Is there as good mechanism for arbitration? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

In Upper Austria, the ESV is sometime used as a moderator in situations of discourse
between client and ESCO. This is not easy, but it is one way arbitration can be done.

40. What happens if the ESCO goes bankrupt? (question from the Kick-Off meeting)
•

There is the possibility that ESCOs guarantee each other’s EPC contracts. In the case, if
an ESCO goes bankrupt, the contract is taken over, under the exact same conditions, by
another ESCO.

•

EPC contract are built up in a way so that municipalities do not run the risk of having their
street lighting installations removed if the ESCO goes bankrupt.

41. Is there EU legislation that can be used in Ireland to overcome the issues relating to
"Equivalent Metering"? If this legislation exists, how can EU legislation be adapted to overcome
the issues experienced in Ireland? (question from Kilkenny)
•

PHILIPS is not aware of any such legislation.

•

“Equivalent metering” is used in situations of unmetered electricity consumption to define
the estimated load (wattage) of lamps. For example, a 100 Watt lamp, through dimming of
switch-off, could be shown to through equivalent metering to represent only a 70 Watt
lamp.

42. In Ireland, the ESB Networks (grid-operator?) use tamper-proof meters, therefore only they can
have access to the meter. Is there EU legislation that states what type of meter that the
network operator can use? How is this done in other jurisdictions? (question from Kilkenny)
•

PHILIPS is not aware of any such legislation
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•

Escan: In Spain, the responsibility for the installation and operation of the meters is on the
side of the DSOs. The minimum requirements in Spain are declared in the legislation (eg
characteristics such as accuracy, what minimum measures should be provided, etc.). You
can check:
• The Directive on Measuring Instruments 2004/22/EC
http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/policies/european-standards/harmonisedstandards/measuring-instruments/index_en.htm
• The Third Energy Package: Directives 2009/72/EC and 2009/73/EC
• The Energy Efficiency Directive (EED): 2012/27/EU

43. How is the phasing out process of street lighting being done across Europe? (question from
CKEA)
•

Every partner has that to analyse in their reports. It can also be discussed at the next
meeting.

•

Escan: In Spain only a few end-users know about the phasing-out process, mainly big cities
or consumers. Smaller Municipalities and customers are often not aware.

44. In Ireland the Triple E product register is used by the public sector to purchase energy efficient
equipment (street lighting), this is seen as a barrier by suppliers to get their products into the
market, How can this problem be overcome? (question from CKEA)
•

(Answer from Philips) This can be overcome by ensuring that tender specifications are
written in such a way that the supplier is allowed to submit data to show that their products
can meet the Triple E register. In the case of Philips, the “in-house” laboratories which do
our product testing should be acceptable by the triple E register. This is currently not the
case for all manufacturers. All the while, there are many spurious LED manufacturers
entering with market who appear to have no problem getting their products registered on
the Triple E Register!
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